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Appendix 4E preliminary final report
In compliance with ASX Listing Rule 4.3A
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Results for Announcement to the Market
30‐Jun‐14
USD

Increase /
(decrease)
‐57%
‐98%
‐98%

Revenue from ordinary activities
Loss from ordinary activities after tax attributable to members
Net loss for the period attributable to members

30‐Jun‐13
USD

2,658
(364,673)
(364,673)

6,227
(15,914,633)
(15,914,633)

Dividends / distributions
Amount per security

Franked amount per security
‐
‐

Final dividend
Interim dividend

‐
‐

Net tangible assets per security

Net tangible assets per ordinary security

30‐Jun‐14
USD cents/share
1.51

30‐Jun‐13
USD cents/share
1.94

Details of entities over which control has been gained or lost during the period
N/A.

Details of associates and joint venture entities

Gain (Loss) from ordinary activities before tax

Name of Entity
Agricola Resources Plc
Wayland Copper Ltd

Percentage of ownership
interest
30‐Jun‐14
30‐Jun‐13
%
%
29.80%
29.80%
50%
50%

30‐Jun‐14
USD
‐

30‐Jun‐13
USD
‐

Contribution to gain /
(loss)
30‐Jun‐14
30‐Jun‐13
USD
USD
‐
‐
‐
‐

Explanation of net profit / (loss)
The loss for the period was a result of:

general operating expenses of the Group;

impairment of the Maybell Uranium Project; and

offset by the gain on revaluation of shares in African Energy Resources Ltd to fair value.

This report is based on the consolidated financial statements which have been audited by BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd, with the Independent Auditor’s report
included in the financial statements. The accounts are not subject to audit dispute or qualification.
Additional Appendix 4E disclosure requirements can be found in the attached financial statements of Energy Ventures and its controlled entities.

Gregory (Bill) Fry
Executive Director
29 August 2014
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Directors’ Report
30 June 2014
The Directors present their report together with the financial report of Energy Ventures Limited (“the Company” or “EVE”) and the Company and its controlled
entities (“Group” or “Consolidated Entity”), for the financial year ended 30 June 2014.

1.

Directors and Company Secretary
The Directors and Company Secretary in office at any time during or since the end of the financial year are:
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Mr Alasdair Cooke, Executive Chairman
Mr Gregory (Bill) Fry, Executive Director
Mr Michael Curnow, Non‐Executive Director
Mr Steven Jackson, Company Secretary
Directors’ Meetings
Board of
Directors*
Present
Held

Remuneration
Committee
Present
Held

Audit
Committee
Present
Held

Alasdair Cooke

3

3

‐

‐

‐

‐

Gregory Fry

3

3

‐

‐

‐

‐

Michael Curnow

3

3

‐

‐

‐

‐

*Includes meetings by circular resolution.

Directors and Company Secretary
Mr Alasdair Cooke BSc (Hons) | Executive Chairman
Mr Cooke is a qualified geologist and has been involved throughout his career in mineral exploration and corporate development, including eight years spent
with BHP Minerals Business Development Group and over fifteen years managing public resource companies.
Mr Cooke is a founding partner of the Mitchell River Group, which over the past fifteen years has established a number of successful mining projects and
resources companies, developing greenfield mines in Australia, Africa and South America.

Other current directorships
African Energy Resources Limited
Anova Metals Limited (Appointed 8 Aug 2013)

Special responsibilities
Executive Chairman
Member of the remuneration committee

Former directorships in the last three years
Exco Resources Limited

Interests in shares and options
122,133,628 ordinary shares

Mr Gregory Fry | Executive Director
Mr Fry has more than 20 years corporate experience in the mining and resources industry, specialising in accounting, management, business development and
general corporate activities. He has vast experience in project evaluation and development, project funding, management, finance and operations. Over the past
15 years, Mr Fry has been a Director of several private and public companies with activities ranging from funds management, minerals exploration, mining and
quarrying.

Other current directorships
African Energy Resources Limited
Anova Metals Limited

Special responsibilities
Member of the audit committee

Former directorships in the last three years
Norrland Resources Limited

Interests in shares and options
17,231,549 ordinary shares

Mr Michael Curnow | Non‐Executive Director
Mr Curnow brings extensive and valuable experience in the resources sector to the Company with his past positions including gold, platinum and mineral sands
exploration. He has been involved in the ownership and management of a range of businesses in his native South Africa and Australia, including being the
founding Director of Gallery Gold Limited and AGR Limited, along with being a Director of a number of other public mining companies, three of which are now
producing.

Other current directorships
Citation Resources Limited

Special responsibilities
Chairman of the audit and remuneration committees

Former directorships in the last three years
African Energy Resources Limited

Interests in shares and options
4,310,854 ordinary shares

Mr Steven Jackson BEc CPA | Company Secretary
Mr Jackson is a member of CPA Australia who graduated from the University of Western Australia in 2008 with a Bachelor of Economics having majored in
International Business Economics and Money and Banking. Mr Jackson has been with Energy Ventures since 2008 and was appointed to the role of Company
Secretary in May 2012.
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2.

Review of Operations
Energy Ventures is an ASX listed investment company, with an investment portfolio comprising international energy sector assets, and primarily focused on
uranium resource projects in the western USA. The Company is still optimistic about the long‐term demand for uranium and is continuing to advance work on its
lead project, the Aurora Uranium Project. Activities over the past 12 months have focussed on metallurgical test work programmes and permitting. These
programmes will continue throughout the 2014‐2015 financial year.
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Due to the current uranium price and in an effort to conserve the Company’s capital at this time the Company has reduced its expenditures accordingly.
Corporate overheads and employment expenses have been reduced and exploration expenditure is being limited to certain key non capital intensive activities to
advance the project. The Company has also decided not to renew the Maybell Uranium Project, which resulted in an impairment charge of $9,966. At the 2012
Annual General Meeting shareholders approved an Employee Share Plan which allows directors to take accrued director fees in equity rather than cash. The
Company continued the Share Plan during the 2013/14 financial year and will do so for 2014/2015. These initiatives have seen the Company’s cash expenses
dramatically reduced.

The Group ended the financial year with cash totalling $345,981 (2013: $204,901). In addition to the cash held there is an additional $55,280 held in project
bonds which have been released subsequent to year end. The Company also holds investments in listed entities valued at a fair value of $321,547 and had a fair
value gain on its listed investments for the period of $39,631 (2012: loss of $487,114). The Company intends to monetise the value of these investments as
appropriate with regards to the funding requirements of the Group and the long‐term potential of the investments.

Amaroo Resources Limited
Energy Ventures’ lead project is an investment in Amaroo Resources Limited, the sole shareholder in Oregon Energy LLC, a US incorporated uranium explorer.
Oregon Energy owns the Aurora uranium project which is located in the southeast part of Oregon, USA and is one of the largest undeveloped uranium deposits
in the country. Mineralisation is hosted by a highly altered sequence of flat‐lying volcanic rocks that may be amenable to mining extraction by open pit methods
at very low cost due to the low waste to ore ratio. Initial leach testwork by previous operators and EVE have shown potentially economic extraction of the
uranium into solution by acid leaching at atmospheric temperature and pressure, though further work is required to optimise the leach regime and final
flowsheet.
1

The Aurora deposit has a total resource base of 38 Mlb eU3O8 comprising an Indicated Resource of 36.7 Mlb eU3O8 at a grade of 253 ppm eU3O8, and an Inferred
Resource of 1.2 Mlb eU3O8 at a grade of 151 ppm eU3O8. The Indicated Resource includes a contiguous zone of mineralisation that contains 18 Mlb eU3O8 at a
grade of 444 ppm eU3O8 (300 ppm eU3O8 cut‐off grade) and occurs in the upper part of the deposit.

The test work programme on composite ore samples is ongoing and progress continues to be made in assessing the atmospheric leaching characteristics of the
high grade domains of the deposit. The metallurgical test work programme on composite ore samples continued through the year and focussed primarily on
physical disaggregation of clay particles. Further tests are underway to determine optimal conditions for leaching of uranium. Earlier test work indicated high
recoveries (>90%) were achieved leaching under elevated pressure and temperature.

Early in 2014 a mineralogical assessment was completed on Aurora ore using X‐ray diffraction, scanning electron microscope, QEMScan® and electron probe
micro‐analysis (EPMA). Significantly, uranium mineralisation was clearly identified for the first time, occurring as discrete ultrafine inclusions primarily in
alumina‐silicate grains. Specific mineralogy has not been possible due to the ultrafine nature of the particles. The fine grain size and close association with
alumina‐silicates (clays) is consistent with the behaviour exhibited in previous metallurgical tests, confirming the rationale for upgrading ore through separation
of the uranium bearing clays from harder barren rock.
A bill promoting a permitting process for economic development proposals, such as the Aurora Uranium Project, while providing a framework for habitat
conservation efforts for the Greater Sage Grouse passed through both houses of the Oregon State Legislature in July 2013. This legislation provides a clear
statutory approval process for the Aurora Uranium Project going forward.
Other Investments
The Company also holds a series of investments in listed and unlisted exploration companies. These include a shareholding in African Energy Resources Limited
(ASX,BSE: AFR) which has a portfolio of coal‐power projects Botswana. The company also holds shares in Agricola Resources Plc and has a joint venture with
Beowulf Mining (LON: BEM) in Wayland Copper Limited, which is exploring for copper‐gold in Sweden. The Company disposed of its investment in Tasman
Metals (TSXV: TSM) during the year.

The Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves (the ‘JORC Code’) sets out minimum standards, recommendations and guidelines for
Public Reporting in Australasia of Exploration Results, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. The information contained in this announcement was prepared and first disclosed under the
JORC Code 2004. It has not been updated since to comply with the JORC Code 2012 on the basis that the information has not materially changed since it was last reported. References to
“Measured, Indicated and Inferred Resources” are to those terms as defined in the JORC Code (2004 edition).

Information in this report relating to Exploration results, Mineral Resources or Ore Reserves is based on information compiled by Mr John Hasleby (a consultant to Energy Ventures
Limited) who is a member of The Australasian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy. Mr Hasleby has sufficient experience that is relevant to the style of mineralisation and type of deposit
under consideration and to the activity that he is undertaking to qualify as a Competent Person under the 2004 Edition of the Australasian Code for reporting of Exploration Results,
Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves. Mr Hasleby consents to the inclusion of the data in the form and context in which it appears.

3.

Remuneration Report – Audited

This Remuneration Report outlines the remuneration arrangements which were in place during the year, and remain in place as at the date of this report, for the
Directors and key management personnel of Energy Ventures Limited.
The information provided in this remuneration report has been audited as required by section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act 2001.

1

The term eU3O8 refers to an equivalent uranium oxide grade that is based on the conversion of a radiometric gamma log determination of radioactive mineral abundance to a

calculated uranium content. True U3O8 values are obtained from direct chemical assay results.
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Principles of compensation
The objective of the Group’s executive reward framework is to ensure reward for performance is competitive and appropriate for the results delivered. The
framework aligns executive reward with achievement of strategic objectives and the creation of value for shareholders, and conforms with market practice for
delivery of reward. The Board ensures that executive reward satisfies the following key criteria for good reward governance practices:

competitiveness and reasonableness;

acceptability to shareholders;

performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation;

transparency; and

capital management.
The Group has structured an executive remuneration framework that is market competitive and complementary to the reward strategy of the organisation.

Alignment to shareholders’ interests:

has economic profit as a core component of plan design;

focuses on sustained growth in shareholder wealth, consisting of dividends and growth in share price, and delivering constant return on assets as well
as focusing the executive on key non‐financial drivers of value; and

attracts and retains high calibre executives.

Alignment to program participants’ interests:

rewards capability and experience;

reflects competitive reward for contribution to growth in shareholder wealth;

provides a clear structure for earning rewards; and

provides recognition for contribution.

The framework provides a mix of fixed and variable pay, and a blend of short and long‐term incentives. As executives gain seniority with the group, the balance
of this mix shifts to a higher proportion of ''at risk'' rewards. Currently no remuneration consultants are used by the Company in formulating remuneration
policies.
Role of the Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee is a committee of the Board. It is primarily responsible for making recommendations to the Board on:

Non‐Executive Director Fees;

Remuneration levels of Executive Directors and other key management personnel;

The over‐arching executive remuneration framework and operation of the incentive plan; and

Key performance indicators and performance hurdles for the executive team.
Their objective is to ensure that remuneration policies and structures are fair and competitive and aligned with the long‐term interests of the Company.

The following table shows key performance indicators for the group over the last five years:

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners
Basic earnings / (loss) per share (cents)
Dividend payments
Dividend payment ratio (%)
Increase / (decrease) in share price (%)
Total KMP incentives as percentage of profit/(loss) for the year (%)

2014
(364,673)
(0.1)
‐
‐
‐50%
‐

2013
(15,914,633)
(4.1)
‐
‐
‐65%
‐

2012
(5,369,311)
(1.5)
‐
‐
‐80%
‐

2011
21,004,155
6.4
‐
‐
412%
‐

2010
(5,972,764)
(1.3)
‐
‐
‐
‐

The Corporate Governance Statement provides further information on the role of the Board.

Non‐Executive Directors
Fees and payments to Non‐Executive Directors reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of, the Directors. Non‐Executive Directors’ fees
and payments are reviewed annually by the Board. The Chairman’s fees are determined independently to the fees of Non‐Executive Directors based on
comparative roles in the external market.
Non‐Executive Directors’ fees
On appointment to the Board, all Non‐Executive Directors enter into an agreement with the Company in the form of a letter of appointment. The letter
summarises the Board policies and terms, including compensation, relevant to the office of Director.

The current base remuneration for Non‐Executive Directors’ is $25,000 per annum, which has been in place since 2008.
Executive pay
An executive’s total remuneration comprises the following two components:

base pay and benefits, including superannuation; and

long‐term incentive through participation in the EVE Employee Option Plan.

Base pay
Base pay is structured as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as a combination of cash and prescribed non‐financial benefits at the
executive’s discretion.
Executives are offered a competitive base pay that comprises the fixed component of pay and rewards. Base pay for executives is reviewed annually to ensure
the executive’s pay is competitive with the market. An executive’s pay is also reviewed on promotion. There are no guaranteed base pay increases included in
any executives’ contracts.
Energy Ventures Limited
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Long‐term incentives
Long‐term incentives are provided to certain Non‐Executive Directors and executives under the EVE Employee Option Plan.
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Share trading policy
The trading of shares issued to participants under the Company’s employee option plan is subject to, and conditional upon, compliance with the Company’s
employee share trading policy. Executives are prohibited from entering into and hedging arrangements over unvested options under the Company’s employee
option plan. The Company would consider a breach of this policy as gross misconduct which may lead to disciplinary action and potential dismissal.
Service contracts
On appointment to the Board, all Non‐Executive Directors enter into an agreement with the Company in the form of a letter of appointment. The letter
summarises the Board policies and terms, including compensation, relevant to the office of Director.
The Company currently has Executive Service Agreements in place with the Executive Directors. Details of the executive’s agreements are listed below.
Name
Gregory (Bill) Fry
Alasdair Cooke

Term of Agreement
On‐going commencing 1 July 2009
On‐going commencing 8 January 2007

Base Salary*
AUD$165,000
AUD$100,000

Termination Benefit**
3 months base salary
3 months base salary

* Base salaries quoted are inclusive of superannuation for the year ended 30 June 2014; they are reviewed annually by the Remuneration Committee.

** Termination benefits are payable on early termination by the company, other than for gross misconduct.

Voting and comments made at the Company’s 2013 Annual General Meeting
The Company received more than 93% of “yes” votes on its remuneration report for the 2013 financial year. The Company did not receive any specific feedback
at the AGM or throughout the year on its remuneration practices.
Director and Key Management Personnel remuneration
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and key management personnel of the Group (as defined in AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures) are set out in the following
tables.
There are no key management personnel of the Group besides the Directors of Energy Ventures Limited for 30 June 2014.
Details of remuneration
The following tables set out remuneration paid to Directors and key management personnel of the Consolidated Entity during the year.

Key management personnel of the Group

2014
Non‐Executive Director
Michael Curnow
Executive Directors
Alasdair Cooke
Gregory Fry
Total
2013
Non‐Executive Director
Michael Curnow
Executive Directors
Alasdair Cooke
Lachlan Reynolds (resigned 11/09/2012)
Gregory Fry
Total

Short‐term employee
benefits
Salary & fees
USD

Post‐employment

Share based
payments
USD

Superannuation
USD

Total
USD

‐

‐

6,011

6,011

‐
75,725
75,725

‐
‐
‐

30,028
19,838
55,877

30,028
95,563
131,602

USD

USD

USD

USD

‐

‐

5,336

5,336

‐
71,884
105,901
177,786

‐
‐
‐
‐

21,416
27
10,490
37,270

21,416
71,911
116,391
215,055

The Group currently has no performance based remuneration built into Director or key management personnel packages; the total remuneration shown in the
table above is fixed, the lack of performance based remuneration is due to the size of the Company.
The options issued to key management personnel during the year are to provide long term incentive to deliver long term shareholder returns.

Share‐based compensation
Shares in Energy Ventures Limited are issued under the Energy Ventures Shan Plan which was approved by shareholders at the 2012 Annual General Meeting.
The Employee Share Plan is designed to reduce the cash costs of the Company by providing Directors and key management personnel with shares in lieu of
accrued fees. Participation in the plan is at the Board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed
benefits.
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During the period the following shares were issued the Share Plan:
Issue price of shares
cents (USD)
0.4
0.4
0.4
1.1
0.4

Date shares issued
1‐Jul‐13
18‐Oct‐13
6‐Jan‐14
6‐Jan‐14
29‐Apr‐14

No. of shares
1,482,143
767,857
2,687,500
2,666,667
10,187,500
17,791,667

Options over shares in Energy Ventures Limited are granted under the Energy Ventures Employee Option Plan which was approved by shareholders at the 2011
Annual General Meeting. The Employee Option Plan is designed to provide long‐term incentives for Directors and key management personnel to deliver long‐
term shareholder returns. Participation in the plan is at the Board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive
any guaranteed benefits.
Vesting of the options is based on the period of service, no incentive options granted to date are based on performance‐related vesting conditions. Options are
granted under the plan for no consideration.
No options were granted during the year.
Equity instrument held by key management personnel

(i) Option holdings
2014
Non‐Executive
Director
Michael Curnow
Executive Directors
Gregory Fry
Alasdair Cooke

2013
Non‐Executive
Director
Michael Curnow
Executive Directors
Lachlan Reynolds*
Gregory Fry
Alasdair Cooke

Balance at
1/07/2013

Balance at
30/06/2014

Expired

Vested and
exercisable

Unvested

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

2,000,000
1,000,000
3,000,000

(2,000,000)
(1,000,000)
(3,000,000)

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

Balance at
1/07/2012

Balance at
30/06/2013

Expired

Vested and
exercisable

Unvested

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

500,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
3,500,000

‐
‐
‐
‐

500,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
3,500,000

500,000
2,000,000
1,000,000
3,500,000

‐
‐
‐
‐

* Balance as at date of resignation as key management personnel.

(ii) Share holdings
2014
Non‐Executive Director
Michael Curnow
Executive Director
Gregory Fry
Alasdair Cooke

2013
Non‐Executive Director
Michael Curnow
Executive Directors
Lachlan Reynolds*
Gregory Fry
Alasdair Cooke

Balance at
1/07/2013

Shares issued in
lieu of fees

Purchases

Balance at
30/06/2014

1,627,255

451,457

1,607,142

3,685,854

9,865,477
72,992,615
84,485,347

‐
38,426,727
38,878,184

5,303,572
8,214,286
15,125,000

15,169,049
119,633,628
138,488,531

Balance at
1/07/2012

Shares issued in
lieu of fees

Purchases

Balance at
30/06/2013

1,091,542

‐

535,713

1,627,255

1,955,001
8,686,905
70,849,757
82,583,205

‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
1,178,572
2,142,858
3,857,143

1,955,001
9,865,477
72,992,615
86,440,348

* Balance as at date of resignation as key management personnel.
This is the end of the audited remuneration report.
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4.

Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Group during the financial year was to hold various investments with a view to add value and eventually realise these for a profit.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the financial year.

5.

Operating Results
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The operating loss of the Group attributable to equity holders of the Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 amounted to $364,673 (2013:
$15,914,633).

6.

Loss per Share

The basic loss per share for the Group for the year was 0.1 cents (2013: 4.1 cents) per share.

7.

Dividends Paid or Recommended

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and no amount has been paid or declared by way of a dividend to the date of this report.

8.

Events Since the End of the Financial Year

There are no other matters or circumstances that have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the
operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.

9.

Likely Developments and Expected Results of Operations

The Group will continue to review its current investment portfolio and new investment opportunities in order to maximise shareholder returns through
appropriate strategic investment decisions.

10. Significant Changes in State of Affairs
In the opinion of the Directors, other than stated under Review of Operations, and Events Subsequent to Reporting Date, there were no significant changes in
the state of affairs of the Group that occurred during the financial year under review and subsequent to the financial year end.

11. Environmental Regulations
The Group’s operations are not subject to any significant environmental regulations under either Commonwealth or State legislation. However the Board
believes there are adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental requirements and is not aware of any breach of those environmental
requirements as they apply.

The Group is not subject to the reporting requirements of both the Energy Efficiency Opportunities Act 2006 and the National Greenhouse and Energy Reporting
Act 2007.

12. Share Options
As at the date of this report, there were nil unlisted options on issue.

13. Non‐Audit Services
The company may decide to employ the auditor on assignments additional to their statutory audit duties where the auditor’s expertise and experience with the
company and/or the group are important.
During the year, there were no non‐audit services provided by BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd.

14. Lead Auditors Independence Declaration under Section 307c of the Corporations Act 2001
The lead auditor's independence declaration is set out on page 22 and forms part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 30 June 2014.

15. Indemnifying Officers
Since the end of the previous financial year, the Group has paid insurance premiums in respect of Directors’ and officers’ liability, legal expenses’ and insurance
contracts, for current Directors and Executives of the Group. The premiums were paid in respect of the following officers of the Group: Michael Curnow, Alasdair
Cooke, Gregory Fry and Steven Jackson.
On behalf of the Board of
Energy Ventures Limited

Dated at Perth this 29 August 2014.
Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

Gregory William Fry
Executive Director
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ENERGY VENTURES AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIES
The Directors of the Company declare that:
The financial statements, comprising the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position, Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and accompanying notes, are in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001; and
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1

(a)

comply with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001 and other mandatory professional reporting requirements; and

(b)

give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2014 and of the performance for the year ended on that date of the Consolidated Entity.

2

In the Directors’ opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.

3

In the Directors’ opinion, the financial statements and notes are prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations
adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board, as described in Note 2(a).

4

The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer required by section 295A of the Corporations Act
2001.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed on behalf of the Directors by:

Gregory William Fry
Executive Director
Perth

29 August 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Revenue from continuing operations
Professional fees
Employee benefit expense
Share‐based payments
Impairment
Impairment of exploration expenditure
Fair value gain / (loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Other expenses
Foreign currency gain / (loss)
Loss before income tax
Income tax benefit / (expense)
Loss after income tax for the year

Note
7
8
9
9
19
12
10
11
13

Loss is Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Foreign currency translation reserve
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Loss per share for loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company:
Basic loss per share (cents per share)
Diluted loss per share (cents per share)

14
14

30‐Jun‐14
USD
2,658
(70,530)
(193,411)
‐
‐
(9,966)
39,631
(132,995)
(60)
(364,673)
‐
(364,673)

30‐Jun‐13
USD
6,227
(73,878)
(310,617)
(13,533)
(23,849)
(14,776,417)
(487,114)
(235,124)
(328)
(15,914,633)
‐
(15,914,633)

(364,673)
(364,673)

(15,914,633)
(15,914,633)

13,890
13,890

(69,891)
(69,891)

(350,783)

(15,984,524)

(0.1)
n/a

(4.1)
n/a

The Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Total current assets
Non‐current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation expenditure
Total non‐current assets
Total assets
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
Net assets
Equity
Issued capital
Reserves
Retained earnings / (accumulated losses)
Total equity attributable to shareholders of the Company

Energy Ventures Limited

30‐Jun‐14
USD

30‐Jun‐13
USD

15
16
17

345,981
76,408
321,547
743,936

204,901
185,283
297,055
687,240

18
19

235,092
6,744,569
6,979,661
7,723,596

295,688
6,553,052
6,848,740
7,535,980

20

79,612
79,612
79,612
7,643,985

72,307
72,307
72,307
7,463,673

21
22

11,457,725
2,033,448
(5,847,188)
7,643,985

10,926,630
2,457,235
(5,920,192)
7,463,673

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Position is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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USD
10,926,630
‐
‐
‐

Retained Earnings
/ (Accumulated
Losses)
USD
(5,920,192)
(364,673)
‐
(364,673)

Total equity at 30 June 2014

404,195
126,900
‐
531,095
11,457,725

Total equity at 1 July 2012
Loss for the year
Foreign currency translation
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

Contributed Equity

For personal use only

Total equity at 1 July 2013
Loss for the year
Foreign currency translation
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Share issue net of issue costs
Share based payments
Transfer of historic share based payments to accumulated losses

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Share issue net of issue costs
Share based payments
Total equity at 30 June 2013

Energy Ventures Limited

Reserves

Total Equity

USD
2,457,235
‐
13,890
13,890

USD
7,463,673
(364,673)
13,890
(350,783)

‐
‐
437,676
437,676
(5,847,188)

‐
‐
(437,676)
(437,676)
2,033,448

404,195
126,900
‐
531,095
7,643,985

10,899,810
‐
‐
‐

9,994,441
(15,914,633)
‐
(15,914,633)

2,513,594
‐
(69,891)
(69,891)

23,407,844
(15,914,633)
(69,891)
(15,984,524)

(4,684)
31,504
26,820
10,926,630

‐
‐
‐
(5,920,192)

‐
13,533
13,533
2,457,235

26,820
13,533
40,353
7,463,673

The Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Note
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Cash flows from operating activities
Cash paid to suppliers and employees
Interest received
Net cash used in operating activities

30‐Jun‐14
USD

30‐Jun‐13
USD

(150,907)
2,658
(148,249)

(737,542)
6,227
(731,315)

(142,798)
27,761
(115,037)

(463,181)
‐
(463,181)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of share capital
Payment for share issuance costs
Net cash provided / (used) by financing activities

453,506
(49,310)
404,195

‐
(4,684)
(4,684)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

140,909

(1,199,180)

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Effect of exchange rates on cash holdings in foreign currencies
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

204,901
171
345,981

1,428,257
(24,176)
204,901

30

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for exploration and evaluation expenditure
Proceeds from sale of listed investment
Net cash used in investing activities

Energy Ventures Limited
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The Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is to be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014
1.

Reporting entity
Energy Ventures Limited (the “Company”) is a company domiciled in Australia. The consolidated financial report of the Company for the financial year ended 30
June 2014 comprises the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).
The consolidated financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on 29 August 2014.
Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance
These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (‘AASBs’) (including Australian
Interpretations) adopted by the Australian Accounting Standards Board (‘AASB’) and the Corporations Act 2001. The financial report of the Consolidated
Entity also complies with IFRSs and interpretations as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Energy Ventures Ltd is a for‐profit entity for
the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

For personal use only

2.

Separate financial statements for Energy Ventures Limited, as an individual entity, are no longer presented as a consequence of a change to the
Corporations Act 2001. Financial information for Energy Ventures Limited as an individual entity is included in note 31.

(b) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 July 2013:

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements – There is no impact on transactions and balances recognised in the financial statements as the Group does not
have any special purpose entities.
AASB 11 Joint Arrangement – There is no impact on the transactions and balance recognised in the financial statements as the Group has not entered into
any joint arrangements.
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities – There is no impact on amounts recognised in the financial statements.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement – The additional disclosures were included for items measured at fair value in the statement of financial position, as well
as items merely disclosed at fair value in the notes to the financial statements.

AASB 119 Employee Benefits (September 2011) and AASB 2011‐10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)
– There is no impact on the transactions and balance recognised in the financial statements as the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement.

Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine and AASB 2011‐12 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from
Interpretation 20 – There is no impact on the transactions and balance recognised in the financial statements as the Group has not entered into commercial
production phase of the mine.

(c) Basis of measurement
The financial report is prepared on the historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss.
(d) Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars which is also the functional currency of the Company’s US subsidiaries. The functional
currency of the parent company is Australian dollars.
(e) Going concern
The financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the continuity of normal business activity and the realisation of assets
and the settlement of liabilities in the normal course of business.
During the year the Consolidated Entity derived a net loss for the year of $364,673 and had net cash inflows from operating and financing activities of
$255,946.

The ability of the Consolidated Entity to continue as a going concern is dependent upon the future successful raising of necessary funding through equity,
successful exploration and subsequent exploitation of the Consolidated Entity’s tenements and/or the sale of non‐core assets. The Directors believe that the
Consolidated Entity will continue as a going concern. As a result the financial report has been prepared on a going concern basis. However, should the
Consolidated Entity be unsuccessful in undertaking additional raisings, the Consolidated Entity may not be able to continue as a going concern. No
adjustments have been made relating to the recoverability and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Consolidated Entity not
continue as a going concern.

(f) Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of a financial report in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates. These accounting policies have been consistently applied by each entity in the Consolidated Entity.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements are described in the following notes:

Energy Ventures Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2014

3.

-

Note 17 – Impairment of Available‐for‐Sale Financial Assets – The Group’s accounting policy for Impairment is set out in note 3(f). If, after having
losses are taken into account under this policy, the Directors conclude that the Group is unlikely to recover the investment, then the relevant
capitalised amount will be written off to the Profit & Loss.

-

Note 19 – Exploration & evaluation expenditure ‐ The Group’s accounting policy for exploration and evaluation is set out in note 3(l). If, after having
capitalised expenditure under this policy, the Directors conclude that the Group is unlikely to recover the expenditure by future exploration or sale,
then the relevant capitalised amount will be written off to the Profit & Loss.

-

Note 28 – Share‐based payment arrangements ‐ The Group measures the cost of equity settled share based payments at fair value at the grant date
using the Black‐Scholes model taking into account the exercise price, the term of the option, the impact of dilution, the share price at grant date,
the expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and risk free interest rate for the term of the option.

Significant accounting policies
(a) Basis of consolidation
(i)
Subsidiaries
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and liabilities of all controlled entities of Energy Ventures Limited (“Company” or
“Parent Company”) as at 30 June 2014 and the results of all controlled entities for the year then ended. Energy Ventures Limited and its controlled
entities together are referred to in this financial statement as the Group or the Consolidated Entity.
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power to
direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(ii)

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intragroup balances, and any unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intragroup transactions, are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.

(iii)

Associates (equity accounted investees)
Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for in the parent entity financial statements using the cost
method and in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. The Group’s
investment in associates includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairments loss) identified on the acquisition.
The Group’s share of its associates post‐acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of post‐acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income. The cumulative post‐acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of
the investment, thereafter gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
associate.

(b) Segment reporting
AASB 8 Operating Segments requires a ‘management approach’, under which segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal
reporting purposes. The segments are reported in a manner that is consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker.
(c) Foreign currency translation
(i)
Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are presented in US dollars.
(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in the foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to the functional currency at the foreign
exchange ruling at that date. Non‐monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
Foreign exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income.
Group Companies
The functional currency of the Company is Australian dollars and foreign operations in the Group have a functional currency of US Dollars.
The financial results and position of operations with a functional currency different from the Group’s presentation currency are translated as follows:



Assets and liabilities are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date; and
Income and expenses are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.

Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve in the
Statement of Financial Position. These differences are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income in the period
the operation is disposed.
(d) Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is
recognised:
Energy Ventures Limited
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Interest – Control of the right to receive the interest payment must exist.
(e) Income tax
The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for
each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.
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The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in controlled
entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax
balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset when the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a new basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(f) Impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an indicator of impairment exists, the
Group makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. It is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset's value in use cannot be estimated to be close to its fair value less costs to sell and it does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash‐generating
unit to which the asset belongs.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre‐tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

(g) Contributed equity
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options for the acquisition of a business are not included in the cost of the acquisition as part of the
purchase consideration.
If the entity reacquires its own equity instruments, e.g. as a result of a share buy‐back, those instruments are deducted from equity and the associated
shares are cancelled. No gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss and the consideration paid including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is recognised directly in equity.

(h) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and in banks and short‐term deposits are stated at nominal value.
For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash includes cash on hand and in banks, and money market investments readily convertible to cash within
two working days, net of any outstanding bank overdrafts.

(i) Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment. Trade receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

(j) Financial assets
The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at cost, financial assets at fair value through profit and loss and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its
investments at initial recognition and re‐evaluates this designation at each reporting date.
(i)

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non‐derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise
when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. They are included in current assets,
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except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non‐current assets. Loans and receivables are
included in receivables in the Statement of Financial Position.
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in the category if it is held
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in the category are classified as current assets.

(iii)

Impairment
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

(iv)

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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(ii)

Details on how the fair value of financial instruments is determined are disclosed in note 4.

(k) Property, plant and equipment
Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
With the exception of mining property and development assets, depreciation is charged to profit and loss on a diminishing value basis over the estimated
useful lives of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.
The estimated useful lives in the current and comparative periods are as follows:
Plant and equipment
3‐10 years
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss. When revalued assets are
sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings.

(l) Exploration and evaluation costs
Exploration and evaluation costs, including the costs of acquiring licences, are capitalised as exploration and evaluation assets on an area of interest basis.
Costs incurred before the entities of the Group have obtained the legal rights to explore an area are recognised in the profit and loss.
Exploration and evaluation assets are only recognised if the rights of the area of interest are current and either:
(i)

the expenditures are expected to be recouped through successful development and exploitation of the area of interest; or

(ii)

activities in the area of interest have not at the reporting date, reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment of the existence or otherwise
of economically recoverable reserves and active and significant operations in, or in relation to, the area of interest are continuing.

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment if (i) sufficient data exists to determine technical feasibility and commercial viability, and (ii)
facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount (see impairment accounting policy (f)). For the purposes of
impairment testing, exploration and evaluation assets are allocated to cash‐generating units to which the exploration activity relates. The cash generating
unit shall not be larger than the area of interest.

Once the technical feasibility and commercial viability of the extraction of mineral resources in an area of interest are demonstrable, exploration and
evaluation assets attributable to that area of interest are first tested for impairment and then reclassified from intangible assets to mining property and
development assets within property, plant and equipment.
Costs of site restoration are provided over the life of the facility from when exploration commences and are included in the costs of that stage. Site
restoration costs include the dismantling and removal of mining plant, equipment and building structures, waste removal, and rehabilitation of the site in
accordance with clauses of the mining permits. Such costs have been determined using estimates of future costs, current legal requirements and technology
on an undiscounted basis.

Any changes in the estimates for the costs are accounted for on a prospective basis. In determining the costs of site restoration, there is uncertainty
regarding the nature and extent of the restoration due to community expectations and future legislation. Accordingly the costs have been determined on
the basis that the restoration will be completed within one year of abandoning the site.

(m) Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade creditors and other amounts are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services
received, whether or not billed to the Group. The amounts are unsecured and are usually payable within 30 days of recognition.
(n) Dividends
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared.
(o) Employee benefits
Provision is made for the Group’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to reporting date. Employee benefits have
been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled, plus related on‐costs.
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(p) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal, equitable or constructive obligation to make a future sacrifice of economic benefits to other entities
as a result of past transactions or other past events, it is probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.
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(q) Earnings per share
(i)
Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, excluding any costs of servicing equity
other than ordinary shares, by weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for the bonus elements in
ordinary shares issued during the year.
(ii)

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to take into account the after income tax effect of
interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares and the weighted average number of shares assumed to have
been issued for no consideration in relation to dilutive potential ordinary shares.

(r) Share‐based payments
Equity‐settled share‐based payments granted after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January 2005, are measured at fair value at the date of
grant. Fair value is measured by use of a Black‐Scholes option pricing model. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non‐transferability, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity‐settled share‐based payments is expensed on a straight‐line basis over the vesting period, based
on the Consolidated Entity’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest.

For cash‐settled share‐based payments, a liability equal to the portion of the goods or services received is recognised at the current fair value determined at
each reporting date.

(s) Goods and services tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:




where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the GST is recognised as
part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as applicable; and
receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial
Position.
Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities,
which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are classified as operating cash flows.
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.

(t) Comparative figures
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for the current financial year.

(u) New standards and interpretations not yet adopted
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have been recently issued or amended but are not yet effective have not been adopted by the
Group for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2014. These are outlined in the table below:
AASB reference

AASB 9 (issued
Dec 2009 and
amended Dec
2010)

AASB 2012‐6
(issued
September
2012)

4.

Title and Affected
Standard(s):
Financial Instruments

Amendments to
Australian Accounting
Standards ‐ Mandatory
Effective Date of AASB 9
and Transition Disclosures

Nature of Change

Application date:

Impact on Initial Application

Amends the requirements for
classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

1 Jan 2015

Adoption of AASB 9 is only mandatory for the
year ending 30 Jun 2016. The entity has not yet
made an assessment of the impact of these
amendments.

Defers the effective date of AASB 9 to
1 Jan 2015. Entities are no longer
required to restate comparatives on
first time adoption. Instead, additional
disclosures on the effects of transition
are required.

Annual reporting
periods
beginning on or
after 1 Jan 2015

As comparatives are no longer required to be
restated, there will be no impact on amounts
recognised in the financial statements.
However, additional disclosures will be required
on transition, including the quantitative effects
of reclassifying financial assets on transition.

Financial risk management
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial
performance of the Group. The Group uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed.
Risk management is carried out by a central treasury department (Group Treasury) under policies approved by the Board of Directors. Group Treasury identifies,
evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co‐operation with the Group’s operating units.
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(a) Market risk
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Foreign currency risk
The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the
Australian dollar. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis (see table below) and cash flow forecasting.
The Group’s risk management policy is to form a natural hedge to foreign exchange fluctuations by holding funds in the currency the costs are
forecast to be expended in.
The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period, expressed in US dollars, was:
2014
USD
16,165
59,841

Trade receivables
Trade payables

2013
USD
29,794
42,930

Price risk
The Group is exposed to share price movements on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. Group sensitivity to movement in the share
prices of listed investments is shown in the summarised sensitivity analysis table below. The sensitivity is based on movements in the ASX Small
Ordinaries Index (XSO) during 2014.
7%
Profit
USD

Carrying amount
30 June 2014
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

321,547

‐4%
Equity
USD

22,508

22,508

Profit
USD

Equity
USD

(12,862)

(12,862)

14%
Profit
USD

Carrying amount
30 June 2013
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

297,055

‐12%
Equity
USD

41,588

41,588

Profit
USD

Equity
USD

(35,647)

(35,647)

Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate for classes of financial assets and liabilities is set out
below:
2014
Weighted average
interest rate

2013

Balance USD

Weighted average
interest rate

Balance USD

Floating interest rate:
Cash and cash equivalents
Fixed interest rate:

0.00%

286,406

0.00%

141,441

Term deposits

3.85%

59,575

4.36%

63,460

345,981

204,901

The Group has significant interest‐bearing assets; however a percentage change in interest rates would not have a material impact on the results. Group
sensitivity to movement in interest rates is shown in the summarised sensitivity analysis table below.

Summarised sensitivity analysis

30 June 2014
Financial assets
Cash
Trade receivables
Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Energy Ventures Limited

Carrying amount

Interest rate risk
+ 50 bps
‐ 50 bps
Profit
Equity
Profit
Equity
USD
USD
USD
USD

‐10%
Profit
USD

Foreign exchange risk
10%
Equity
Profit
Equity
USD
USD
USD

345,981
76,408

1,730
‐

‐
‐

(1,730)
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

34,204
1,617

‐
‐

(34,204)
(1,617)

79,612

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

5,984

‐

(5,984)
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Interest rate risk

Carrying amount
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30 June 2013
Financial assets
Cash
Trade receivables
Financial liabilities
Trade payables

Profit
USD

‐ 80 bps
Equity
USD

Foreign exchange risk

Profit
USD

+ 80 bps
Equity
USD

‐10%
Profit
USD

10%
Equity
USD

Profit
USD

Equity
USD

204,901
185,283

1,025
‐

‐
‐

(1,025)
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

20,208
2,979

‐
‐

(20,208)
(2,979)

72,307

‐

‐

‐

‐

‐

4,293

‐

(4,293)

Interest rate volatility was chosen to reflect expected short term fluctuations in market interest rates.
Foreign exchange volatility was chosen to reflect expected short term fluctuations in the Group’s major operational currencies.
(b) Credit risk
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, financial asets, trade and other receivables (excluding prepayments), represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
Cash and short term liquid investment are placed with reputable banks, so no significant credit risk is expected.
The Group does not have any material exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors, so no significant credit risk is expected.

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit rates:
2014
USD
Cash and cash equivalents A‐1+
Cash and cash equivalents A‐1

2013
USD

63,518
282,462

66,279
138,622

(c) Liquidity risk
Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The Group manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group Treasury
aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available with a variety of counterparties. Surplus funds are only invested in
instruments that are tradeable in highly liquid markets.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying amounts as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities

2014
Trade Payables

2013
Trade Payables

Less than 6
months

Total contractual
cash flows

6 ‐ 12 months

79,612
79,612

‐
‐

79,612
79,612

72,307
72,307

‐
‐

72,307
72,307

(d) Fair value estimation
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current closing price.

Total gains or losses for the period included in revenue from continuing operations that related to assets held at the end of the reporting period are set out
below:
2014
USD
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

39,631

2013
USD
(487,114)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date.
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The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short‐term nature.
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial instruments.
Refer to note 18 for details of the Consolidated Entity’s assets measured and recognised at fair value as at 30 June 2014.
Determination of fair values
A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and non‐financial assets and liabilities.
Fair values have been determined for measurement and / or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. Where applicable, further information about
the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.
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5.

(a) Trade and other receivables
The fair value of trade and other receivables is estimated as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting
date.
(b) Share‐based payment transactions
The fair value of employee stock options is measured using a Black‐Scholes option pricing model. Measurement inputs include share price on measurement
date, exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility (based on weighted average historic volatility adjusted for changes expected due to publicly
available information), weighted average expected life of the instruments (based on historical experience and general option holder behaviour), expected
dividends, and the risk‐free interest rate (based on government bonds). Service and non‐market performance conditions attached to the transactions are
not taken into account in determining fair value.

6.

Segment information
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments, based on the Group’s management and internal reporting structure. The
Company’s Board receives segment information across two reportable business segments; USA Exploration and Investment.
For the year ended 30 June 2014
Total segment revenue
Loss before income tax
Revenue from continuing operations
Impairment

USA Exploration

Segment Liabilities
Other
Total Segment Liabilities

For the year ended 30 June 2013

Consolidated

257
(2,207,036)

2,402
1,842,363

2,658
(364,673)

257
(9,966)

2,402
‐

2,658
(9,966)

‐

39,631

39,631

235,092
6,744,569
64,187
7,043,847

‐
‐
679,749
679,749

235,092
6,744,569
743,936
7,723,596

19,771
19,771

59,841
59,841

79,612
79,612

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Segment Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation expenditure
Other
Total Segment Assets

Investment

USA Exploration

Investment

Consolidated

Total segment revenue
Loss before income tax

644
(14,847,066)

5,583
(1,067,566)

6,227
(15,914,633)

Revenue from continuing operations
Impairment

644
(14,776,417)

5,583
(23,849)

6,227
(14,800,266)

‐

(487,114)

(487,114)

295,068
6,553,052
158,308
7,006,428

620
‐
528,931
529,552

295,688
6,553,052
687,240
7,535,980

29,377
29,377

42,930
42,930

72,307
72,307

Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Segment Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Exploration and evaluation expenditure
Other
Total Segment Assets
Segment Liabilities
Other
Total Segment Liabilities
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7.

Revenue from continuing operations
2014
USD
Interest received

9.

10.

11.

12.

2,658
2,658

6,227
6,227

Professional fees
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8.

2013
USD

2014
USD
Audit fees
Tax consulting services
Legal costs
Other professional fees

2013
USD
38,341
2,639
6,586
22,965
70,530

35,490
3,039
6,653
28,696
73,878

Employee benefit expense
2014
USD
Wages
Corporate consultants
Directors fees
Directors fees ‐ equity settled
Share based payments expense

2013
USD

61,304
505
75,725
55,877
‐
193,411

95,562
‐
177,786
37,270
13,533
324,150

Other expenses
2014
USD
Corporate costs
Premises and insurance
Travelling costs
Depreciation
Other operating expenses

2013
USD

23,572
44,279
20
60,628
4,496
132,995

40,069
135,565
2,945
44,770
11,775
235,124

Foreign currency gains & losses
2014
USD
Foreign currency gain / (loss)
Net foreign gain / (loss)

2013
USD
(60)
(60)

(328)
(328)

39,631
39,631

2013
USD
(487,114)
(487,114)

Fair value gain / (loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
2014
USD
Fair value gain / (loss) on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

At 30 June 2014, Energy Ventures owned 4,551,797 shares in ASX listed African Energy Resources. These investments have been revalued to their fair value as at
the reporting date.

13.

Income taxes
Income tax expense / (benefit):
Current tax
Deferred tax

Reconciliation of income tax expense/ (benefit) to
prima facie income tax payable / (refundable):
Loss before income tax
Prima facie income tax at 30%
Tax effect of permanent differences
Difference in overseas tax rates
Utilisation of income tax loss not recognised as deferred tax assets
Effect of tax loss not recognised as deferred tax assets
Income tax expense / (benefit)

Energy Ventures Limited

2014
USD

2013
USD
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

2014
USD
(364,673)
(109,402)
(29,109)
(138,511)
405
‐
138,106
‐

2013
USD
(15,914,633)
(4,774,390)
4,444,440
(329,950)
23
‐
329,928
‐
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Unrecognised deferred tax assets:
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Losses ‐ revenue
Provisions, accruals and other

2014
USD
658,517
34,465
692,982

2013
USD
520,411
39,423
559,834

The tax benefits of the above deferred tax assets will only be obtained if:
a) the consolidated entity derives future assessable income of a nature and of an amount sufficient to enable the benefits to be utilised;
b) the consolidated entity continues to comply with the conditions for deductibility imposed by law;
c) no changes in income tax legislation adversely affect the consolidated entity from utilising the benefits.

14.

Loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share at 30 June 2014 was based on the loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of $364,673 (2013: $15,914,633) and a
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year ended 30 June 2014 of 466,886,699 (2013: 385,603,535) calculated as
follows:
2014
2013
USD
USD
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
Loss for the period
(364,673)
(15,914,633)
Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
(364,673)
(15,914,633)
Basic loss per share
Basic loss per share (cents per share)

(0.1)

(4.1)

n/a

n/a

2014
466,886,699
‐
466,886,699

2013
385,603,535
‐
385,603,535

Diluted loss per share
Diluted loss per share (cents per share)

Weighted average number of shares
Options
Weighted average number of shares diluted EPS

Options granted to employees under the employee share option plan are considered to be potential ordinary shares and have been included in the
determination of diluted earnings per share to the extent that they are dilutive. Details relating to options are set out in note 28.

15.

Cash and cash equivalents

(a) Reconciliation to cash at the end of the year

Cash at bank & on hand
Term deposits

2014
USD
286,406
59,575
345,981

2013
USD
141,442
63,460
204,902

2014
USD

2013
USD

(b) Interest rate risk exposure

16.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk is discussed in note 4.

Trade and other receivables

Trade debtors
Other receivable

462
75,946
76,408

8,269
177,014
185,283

Risk exposure
Information about the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange and interest rate risk is provided in note 4. No receivables held by the Group are past
due or impaired.

17.

Fair value of financial instruments
AASB 13: Fair Value Measurement, requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:
a)
b)
c)

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1);
inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly (level 2): and
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) (level 3).
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The following presents the Group’s applicable financial assets and financial liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2014 and 30 June 2013 on
a recurring basis
2014
2013
USD
USD
Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Listed equity securities ‐ level 1
321,547
297,055
321,547
297,055
The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short‐term nature.

18.

19.

Property, plant and equipment
2014
USD
387,695
(152,603)
235,092

2013
USD
391,080
(95,391)
295,688

Plant and equipment at cost:
Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Balance at the end of the year

2014
USD
391,080
‐
(3,385)
387,695

2013
USD
404,433
‐
(13,354)
391,080

Plant and equipment – depreciation
and impairment losses
Balance at the beginning of the year
Depreciation charge for the year
Effect of movements in foreign exchange
Balance at the end of the year

(95,391)
(60,628)
3,416
(152,603)

(62,134)
(44,770)
11,512
(95,391)

295,688
235,092

342,300
295,688

2014
USD
6,744,569

2013
USD
6,553,052

2014
USD
6,553,052
201,482
(9,966)
6,744,569

2013
USD
21,169,824
159,645
(14,776,417)
6,553,052

6,553,052
6,744,569

21,169,824
6,553,052

Fixed assets at cost
Fixed assets ‐ accumulated depreciation

Carrying amounts
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

Exploration and evaluation expenditure

Exploration expenditure at cost
EE&E movement reconciliation

Balance at the beginning of the year
Additions
Impairment of exploration expenditure
Balance at the end of the year
Carrying amounts
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

The Company has determined that it will not maintain the Maybell Uranium Project when it comes up for renewal, accordingly an impairment charge of
USD9,966 was expensed during the period.
The ultimate recoverability of exploration expenditure carried forward is dependent on successful development and commercial exploitation, or alternatively
sale of respective areas.

20.

Trade and other payables
2014
USD
Trade creditors
Other payables

2013
USD
25,232
54,380
79,612

41,977
30,330
72,307

Risk exposure
Information about the Group's exposure to credit risk, foreign exchange and interest rate risk is provided in note 4.
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21.

Contributed equity
2014
USD
11,984,115
(526,390)
11,457,725

Issued capital
Cost of share issue

Ordinary shares
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(a)

2013
USD
11,403,709
(477,080)
10,926,630

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in the proportion to the number and amount paid
on the shares held.

(b)

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.
Movement in share capital

2014
01 Jul 2013
01 Jul 2013
18 Oct 2013
18 Oct 2013
31 Oct 2013
06 Jan 2014
06 Jan 2014
06 Jan 2014
29 Apr 2014
30 June 2014
2013
01 Jul 2012
29 Nov 2012
12 Feb 2013
30 Apr 2013
30 June 2013

Number of
shares

Issue
price AUD

AUD

USD

Opening balance
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Entitlement Issue
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Entitlement Issue Shortfall
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Settlement of invoice in shares
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Capital raising costs
Closing balance

388,131,568
1,482,143
90,679,118
767,857
6,724,310
2,687,500
2,666,667
9,664,326
10,187,500
‐
512,990,989

0.004
0.005
0.004
0.005
0.004
0.012
0.005
0.004
‐

13,520,675
5,632
453,396
3,071
33,622
10,750
32,000
48,322
40,750
(53,410)
14,094,808

10,926,630
5,143
422,197
2,860
31,308
9,613
28,616
42,872
37,796
(49,310)
11,457,725

Opening balance
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Shares issued in lieu of fees
Capital raising costs
Closing balance

384,274,425
892,857
1,482,143
1,482,143
‐
388,131,568

0.012
0.009
0.004
‐

13,494,749
10,714
13,784
5,929
(4,500)
13,520,675

10,899,810
11,199
14,185
6,120
(4,684)
10,926,630

Shares in Energy Ventures Limited are issued under the Energy Ventures Shan Plan which was approved by shareholders at the 2012 Annual General Meeting.
The Employee Share Plan is designed to reduce the cash costs of the Company by providing Directors and key management personnel with shares in lieu of
accrued fees. Participation in the plan is at the Board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any guaranteed
benefits.

22.

Reserves
2014
USD
‐
2,033,448
2,033,448

2013
USD
437,676
2,019,559
2,457,235

Reconciliation of movement in reserves
Share‐based payments reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year
Equity settled share‐based payment transactions
Transfer of share‐based payments on exercise/lapse of options
Balance at 30 June

437,676
‐
(437,676)
‐

424,144
13,533
‐
437,676

Foreign currency translation reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year

2,019,559

2,089,450

Effect of translation of foreign currency operations to group presentation currency
Balance at 30 June

13,890
2,033,448

(69,891)
2,019,559

Share based payments reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
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Share based payments reserve
The share based payments reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees but not exercised.
Foreign currency translation reserve
The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations where their
functional currency is different to the presentation currency of the Consolidated Entity.
Dividends
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend and no amount has been paid or declared by way of a dividend to the date of this report.
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23.

24.

Remuneration of auditor
2014
USD
Auditors of the Company and unrelated entities
BDO Audit (WA) Pty Ltd:
Audit and review of financial reports
Whiting & Partners Ltd: (Non BDO firm)
Audit of subsidiary financial report
Total auditor’s fees recognised as expense in the income statement

2013
USD

38,341

35,490

6,314
44,655

4,855
40,345

25.

Contingent assets and liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities or contingent assets at 30 June 2014 (2013: nil).

26.

Capital and other commitments
The Group is required to pay $18,616 in August 2014 for the on‐going renewal of claims at the Company’s Aurora project. The Group will be required to pay a
similar amount in August 2015 and in further years should it wish to retain the existing licences (2013: $34,200).
There were no other commitments at 30 June 2014.

27.

Related parties
(a) Parent entity
The parent entity of the Group is Energy Ventures Limited, it is incorporated in Australia.

(b) Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of the following subsidiaries in accordance with the accounting policy
described under 3(a).
Equity
Equity
holding
holding
Country of
incorporation
30‐Jun‐14
30‐Jun‐13
%
%
Direct subsidiaries of the parent
Amaroo Resources Ltd

UK

100

100

USA

100

100

Indirect subsidiaries
(Direct subsidiaries of Amaroo Resources Limited – 100%)
Oregon Energy LLC

(c) Loans to key management personnel
There were no loans made to key management personnel during the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: nil).

(d) Other transactions with related parties

The terms and conditions of the transactions with Directors, key executives and associates and their related entities were no more favourable than those
available, or which might reasonably be expected to be available, on similar transactions to non‐Director related entities on an arm’s length basis.

Mitchell River Group Pty Ltd
Provision of a fully serviced office and admin staff
Alasdair Cooke, Gregory Fry
Exco Resources Ltd
Recharge of overheads and wages
Alasdair Cooke
African Energy Resources Ltd
Recharge of overheads and wages
Alasdair Cooke, Gregory Fry, Michael Curnow
Anova Metals Ltd
Recharge of overheads and wages
Alasdair Cooke, Gregory Fry

Energy Ventures Limited

Charges from:
2014
2013
USD
USD
77,142
190,795

Charges to:
2014
USD
41

2013
USD
15,390

‐

349

‐

61,106

815

186

305

1,574

1,831

10,129

8,375

42,319
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(e) Assets and liabilities arising from the above transactions
2014
USD
137
13,004

Trade debtors
Trade creditors
Share‐based payments
(a) Option Plans
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28.

2013
USD
8,269
10,701

The EVE Employee Option Plan is designed to provide long‐term incentives for senior managers and above (including executive Directors) to deliver long‐term
shareholder returns. Participation in the plan is at the Board’s discretion and no individual has a contractual right to participate in the plan or to receive any
guaranteed benefits.
Options are granted under the plan for no consideration. Options granted under the plan carry no dividend or voting rights. When exercisable, each option is
convertible into one ordinary share. The exercise price of options is based on the weighted average price at which the Company’s shares are traded on the ASX.
2014

Grant date

Expiry date

Exercise price
cents

10‐Sep‐10
7‐Oct‐10
8‐Dec‐10
3‐Feb‐11

31‐Dec‐13
31‐Dec‐13
31‐Dec‐13
31‐Dec‐13

4.3
4.3
5
20

Weighted average exercise price
Weighted average option life

2,400,000
1,700,000
3,000,000
600,000
7,700,000

(2,400,000)
(1,700,000)
(3,000,000)
(600,000)
(7,700,000)

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

Vested and
exercisable at year
end
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

5.80
3.17

5.80
3.17

‐
‐

‐
‐

Balance at start of year

Balance at end of
year

Expired

2013

Grant date

Expiry date

Exercise price
cents

10‐Sep‐10
7‐Oct‐10
8‐Dec‐10
3‐Feb‐11

31‐Dec‐13
31‐Dec‐13
31‐Dec‐13
31‐Dec‐13

4.3
4.3
5
20

Weighted average exercise price
Weighted average option life
(b)

(c)

2,400,000
1,700,000
3,000,000
600,000
7,700,000

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐

2,400,000
1,700,000
3,000,000
600,000
7,700,000

Vested and
exercisable at year
end
2,400,000
1,700,000
3,000,000
600,000
7,700,000

5.80
3.17

‐
‐

5.80
3.17

5.80
3.17

Balance at start of year

Balance at end of
year

Forfeited

Key management personnel compensation
2014
USD
Short‐term employee benefits
Equity compensation benefits

75,725
55,877
131,602

2013
USD
177,786
37,270
215,055

Fair value of options granted

No options were granted during the period.
(d)

Shares issued for services capitalised to exploration and evaluation expenditure

During the period 12,330,993 shares for a value of USD71,488 (2013: nil) were issued to consultants for services in relation to the Consolidated Entity’s
exploration assets.

Detailed remuneration disclosures are provided in the remuneration report on page 4 ‐ 7.

29.

Events occurring after reporting date
Except for the above there are no matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect
the operations of the Group, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Group in future financial years.
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Reconciliation of loss after income tax to net cash inflow from operating activities
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30.

31.

Profit / (Loss) for the year
Adjustments for:
Fair value gain / (loss) on listed investments
Depreciation expense
Impairment expense
Net foreign exchange gains
Equity‐settled share‐based payment expenses
Operating profit / (loss) before changes in working capital and provisions
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables
Net cash from / used in operating activities

30‐Jun‐14
USD
(364,673)

30‐Jun‐13
USD
(15,914,633)

(39,631)
60,628
9,966
60
69,813
(263,837)
99,327
16,261
(148,249)

487,114
44,770
14,800,266
328
45,036
(537,118)
84,258
(278,455)
(731,315)

Parent company disclosures

Current assets
Non‐current assets
Total assets
Current liabilities
Total liabilities
Contributed equity
Reserves
Accumulated losses
Total equity
Profit / (loss) for the year
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year

2014
USD
679,749
7,034,190
7,713,939

2013
USD
528,931
6,977,820
7,506,751

59,841
59,841

42,930
42,930

11,457,725
1,690,523
(5,494,149)
7,654,098

10,926,630
1,865,298
(5,328,107)
7,463,821

(603,719)
‐
(603,719)

(2,295,963)
‐
(2,295,963)

There were no commitments, contingent liabilities or contingent assets at the parent level at 30 June 2014.
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Corporate Governance Statement
30 June 2014
This Statement reflects Energy Ventures Limited’s corporate governance policies and practices as at 30 June 2014 and which were in place throughout the year.
The Board’s philosophy is to adopt practices that are consistent with the best practice recommendations of the ASX Corporate Governance Council and in the
best interests of the Company. The governance practices are reviewed regularly.
A description of the Company’s corporate governance practices is set out below.
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Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for management and oversight
Companies should establish and disclose the respective roles and responsibilities of board and management.



Recommendation 1.1: Companies should establish the functions reserved to the Board and those delegated to senior executives and disclose those
functions.



Recommendation 1.2: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of senior executives.



Recommendation 1.3: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 1.

The Company's practice:
The Board considers that the essential responsibility of Directors is to oversee the Company’s activities for the benefit of its shareholders, employees and other
stakeholders and to protect and enhance shareholder value. Responsibility for management of the Company’s business is delegated to the Executive Directors,
who are accountable to the Board.
Further, the Board takes specific responsibility for:


Contributing to the development of and approving corporate strategy;



Appointing, assessing the performance of and, if necessary removing the Executive Directors;



Reviewing and approving business plans, the annual budget and financial plans including available resources and major capital expenditure initiatives;



Overseeing and monitoring:



Organisational performance and the achievement of strategic goals and objectives



Compliance with the Company’s code of conduct



Progress of major capital expenditures and other corporate projects including acquisitions, mergers and divestments;



Monitoring financial performance including approval of the annual, half yearly and quarterly reports and liaison with the auditor;



Ensuring there are effective management processes in place, including reviewing and ratifying systems of risk identification and management, ensuring
appropriate and adequate internal control processes, and that monitoring and reporting procedures for these systems are effective;



Enhancing and protecting the Company’s reputation;



Approving major capital expenditure, capital management, acquisitions and divestments;



Reporting to shareholders;



Appointment of Directors; and



Any other matter considered desirable and in the interest of the Company.

The Board is responsible for the overall Corporate Governance of the Company including the strategic direction, establishing goals for management and
monitoring the achievement of these goals.

The Company has a formal Board Charter which is on the Company’s website and summarised above. In broad terms, the Board is accountable to the
shareholders and must ensure that the Company is properly managed to protect and enhance shareholders’ wealth and other interests. The Board Charter sets
out the role and responsibilities of the Board within the governance structure of the Company and its related bodies corporate (as defined in the Corporations
Act).
Senior executives are responsible for the ongoing management of the Company’s operations and reporting to the Board. They are accountable for all functions
that are necessary to the operations of the Company and not specifically reserved to the Board. Senior executives’ performance is reviewed on a regular basis by
the Board.
Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 1.1, 1.2 and 1.3.
Principle 2: Structure the Board to add value

Companies should have a board of an effective composition, size and commitment to adequately discharge its responsibilities and duties.
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Recommendation 2.1: A majority of the Board should be independent Directors.



Recommendation 2.2: The Chair should be an independent Director.



Recommendation 2.3: The roles of Chair and Chief Executive Officer should not be exercised by the same individual.



Recommendation 2.4: The Board should establish a Nomination Committee.
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Recommendation 2.5: Companies should disclose the process for evaluating the performance of the Board, its committees and individual Directors.



Recommendation 2.6: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 2.

The Company's practice:
Corporate Governance Council Recommendation 2.1 requires a majority of the Board to be independent Directors. The Corporate Governance Council defines
independence as being free from any business or other relationship that could materially interfere with, or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere
with, the exercise of unfettered and independent judgment. The Company does not comply with this recommendation as the majority of the Board is not
independent.
Corporate Governance Recommendation 2.2 requires that the Chairperson should be an independent Director. The Company does not comply with this
recommendation and the current Chairperson role is filled by an Executive Director.
The Board believes this current structure is best suited to enable the Company to deliver shareholder value and manage the operations for a company of its size.
The Company will continue to review its Board structure in light of these recommendations as it continues to grow to ensure that it is in the best position to
deliver value to its shareholders, key stakeholders and the communities in which it operates.
The Directors have been chosen for their particular expertise to provide the Company with a competent and well‐rounded decision‐making body and which will
assist the Company and shareholders in meeting their objectives.

The term in office held by each Director in office at the date of this report is as follows and details of the professional skills and expertise of each of the Directors
are set out in the Directors’ Report.
Name
Mr A C Cooke
Mr G W Fry
Mr M J Curnow

Position
Executive Chairman
Executive Director
Non‐executive Director

Term in Office
7 Years
5 Years
8 Years

The Directors meet frequently, both formally and informally, so that they maintain a mutual, thorough understanding of the Company's business and to ensure
that the Company's policies of corporate governance are adhered to.

The Company has a formal process to educate new Directors about the nature of the business, current issues, the corporate strategy and the Company’s
expectations concerning the performance of Directors. Directors are given access to, and encouraged to participate in, continuing education opportunities to
update and enhance their skills and knowledge.
Each Director has the right of access to all relevant company information and to the Company's executives and, subject to prior consultation with the Chairman,
may seek independent professional advice from a suitably qualified advisor at the consolidated entity's expense. The Director must consult with an advisor
suitably qualified in the relevant field and obtain the Chairman's approval of the fee payable for the advice before proceeding with the consultation. A copy of
the advice received by the Director is made available to all other board members.
The Company does not currently have a separate Nomination Committee and as such has not complied with Recommendation 2.4. The duties and
responsibilities typically delegated to such a committee are considered to be the responsibility of the full Board, given the size and nature of the Company's
activities and as such, the Board does not believe that any marked efficiencies or enhancements would be achieved by the creation of a separate nomination
committee.
The performance of all Directors is reviewed by the Chairman on an ongoing basis and any Director whose performance is considered unsatisfactory is asked to
retire. The Chairman’s performance is reviewed by the other board members.
The Company has established firm guidelines to identify the measurable and qualitative indicators of the Director’s performance during the course of the year.
Those guidelines include:


Attendance at all board meetings. Missing more than three consecutive meetings without reasonable excuse will result in that Director’s position being
reviewed; and



Attendance at the Company’s Shareholder Meetings. Non‐attendance without reasonable excuse will result in that Director’s position being reviewed.

Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 2.3, 2.5 and 2.6. The Company is not compliant with
Recommendation 2.1, 2.2 and 2.4 as outlined.
Principle 3: Promote ethical and responsible decision‐making
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Companies should actively promote ethical and responsible decision‐making.
Recommendation 3.1: Establish a code of conduct to guide the Directors, the Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent), the Chief Financial Officer (or
equivalent) and any other key executives as to:

the practices necessary to maintain confidence in the Company’s integrity;

the practices necessary to take into account their legal obligations and the reasonable expectations of their stakeholders; and

the responsibility and accountability of individuals for reporting and investigating reports of unethical practices.



Recommendation 3.2: Companies should establish a policy concerning diversity and disclose the policy or a summary of that policy. The policy should
include requirements for the Board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity for the Board to assess annually both the objectives
and progress in achieving them.



Recommendation 3.3: Companies should disclose in each annual report the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity set by the Board in
accordance with the diversity policy and progress towards achieving them.



Recommendation 3.4: Companies should disclose in each annual report the proportion of women employees in the whole organisation, women in senior
executive positions and women on the Board.



Recommendation 3.5: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 3.
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The Company's practice:
The Company has a formal Code of Conduct as per Recommendation 3.1. This code outlines how Directors and employees of the Company and its related bodies
corporate are to behave when conducting business. A full copy of this Code of Conduct is available on the Company’s website.
The Company has not at this time established a formal policy in relation to diversity. The board has considered its approach to diversity in the context of the new
diversity requirements set out in the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations.

The Company is committed to a workplace environment that promotes diversity and recognises the key competitive benefits of recruiting, developing and
retaining a talented, diverse and motivated workforce. The board recognises the benefits of diversity at board level, senior management level and within the
organisation generally and recognises the organisational strengths, deeper problem solving ability and opportunity for innovation that diversity may bring.
The board believes that given the size and nature of the Company's activities, and the existing diversity profile of the organisation, that an informal approach is
appropriate at this time. Senior management roles and positions are filled by the best candidates available without discrimination. The Company aims to
increase diversity in senior appointments as positions and appropriate candidates become available.

The Company will review this position annually and, as activities expand, plans to establish a formal diversity policy and set measurable objectives for achieving
diversity in relation to gender.
The proportion of women employees in the organisation as of 30 June 2014 is:
In whole organisation
In senior executive positions
On the Board

29%
0%
0%

The Company has made the relevant material available in the Corporate Governance Statement within its Annual Report and its website disclosure in
accordance with Recommendation 3.5.
Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 3.1, 3.4 and 3.5. The Company is not compliant with
Recommendation 3.2 and 3.3 as outlined.
Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting
Companies should have a structure to independently verify and safeguard the integrity of their financial reporting.


Recommendation 4.1: The Board should establish an Audit Committee.



Recommendation 4.2: The Audit Committee should be structured so that it:

consists only of Non‐Executive Directors;

consists of a majority of independent Directors;

is chaired by an independent Chair, who is not Chair of the Board; and

has at least three members.



Recommendation 4.3: The Audit Committee should have a formal charter.



Recommendation 4.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 4.

The Company's practice:
The Board has a separate Audit Committee to assist the Board, its responsibilities are set out in a formal charter approved by the Board. Due to the size and
structure of the Company, the Audit Committee consists of both Executive and Non‐Executive Directors and therefore the Company is not compliant with
Recommendation 4.2
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The Committee’s responsibilities under the charter include the following:
Reviewing internal control and recommending enhancements;



Monitoring compliance with Corporations Act 2001, Securities Exchange Listing Rules, matters outstanding with auditors, Australian Taxation Office,
Australian Securities and Investment Commission and financial institutions;



Improving the quality of the accounting function;
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Reviewing external audit reports to ensure that where major deficiencies or breakdowns in controls or procedures have been identified, appropriate and
prompt remedial action is taken by management;



Liaising with the external auditors and ensuring that the annual audit and half‐year review are conducted in an effective manner; and



Reviewing the performance of the external auditors on an annual basis and nomination of auditors is at the discretion of the Board.

The Board imposes stringent policies and standards to ensure compliance with all corporate financial and accounting standards. Where considered appropriate,
the Company's external auditors, professional advisors and management are invited to advise the Board on these issues and the Board meets quarterly to
consider audit matters prior to statutory reporting.
The Company requires that its auditors must not carry out any other major area of service to the Company and should have expert knowledge of both Australian
and International jurisdictions.
The Board assumes responsibility to ensure that an effective internal control framework exists within the entity. This includes internal controls to deal with both
the effectiveness and efficiency of significant business processes, the safeguarding of assets, the maintenance of proper accounting records, and the reliability of
financial information. The Board maintains responsibility for a framework of internal control and ethical standards for the management of the consolidated
entity.

The Board, consisting of members with financial expertise and detailed knowledge and experience of the mineral exploration and evaluation business, advises
on the establishment and maintenance of a framework of internal control and appropriate ethical standards for the management of the Company.
The Executive Director and Company Secretary declared in writing to the Board that the Company's financial reports for the year ended 30 June 2014 present a
true and fair view, in all material respects, of the Company's financial condition and operational results and are in accordance with relevant accounting
standards. This statement is required annually.

Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 4.1, 4.3 and 4.4. The Company is not compliant with
Recommendation 4.2 as outlined.
Principle 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure
Companies should promote timely and balanced disclosure of all material matters concerning the company.


Recommendation 5.1: Companies should establish written policies designed to ensure compliance with ASX Listing Rule disclosure requirements and to
ensure accountability at a senior executive level for that compliance and disclose those policies or a summary of those policies.



Recommendation 5.2: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 5.

The Company's practice:
The Company has a formal Continuous Disclosure Policy as required by Recommendation 5.1. This policy was introduced to ensure the Company achieves best
practice in complying with its continuous disclosure obligations under the Corporations Act and ASX Listing Rules and ensuring the Company and individual
officers do not contravene the Corporations Act or ASX Listing Rules. A full copy of this policy can be found on the Company’s website.

The Company is required to immediately tell the ASX once it becomes aware of any information concerning it that a reasonable person would expect to have a
material effect on the price or value of the entity’s securities.
Therefore to meet this obligation the Company undertakes to:



Notify the ASX immediately it becomes aware of any information that a reasonable person would expect to have a material effect on the price and value
of the companies securities, unless that information is not required to be disclosed under the listing rules;



Disclose notifications to the ASX on the Company website following confirmation of the publishing of the information by the ASX; and



Not respond to market speculation or rumour unless the ASX considers it necessary due to there being, or likely to be, a false market in the Company’s
securities.

The Executive Director and Company Secretary are responsible for co‐ordinating the disclosure requirements. To ensure appropriate procedure all Directors,
officers and employees of the Company coordinate disclosures through the Company Secretary, including:


Media releases;



Analyst briefings and presentations; and
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The release of reports and operational results.

Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 5.1 and 5.2.
Principle 6: Respect the rights of shareholders
Companies should respect the rights of shareholders and facilitate the effective exercise of those rights.
Recommendation 6.1: Companies should design a communications policy for promoting effective communication with shareholders and encouraging
their participation at General Meetings and disclose their policy or a summary of that policy.



Recommendation 6.2: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 6.
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The Company's practice:
It is the policy of the Company to communicate effectively with its shareholders by giving them ready access to balanced and understandable information about
the Company and making it easier for them to participate in General Meetings.
The Board encourages full shareholder participation at the Annual General Meeting as it provides shareholders an opportunity to review the Company’s annual
performance. Shareholder attendance also ensures a high level of accountability and identification with the Company’s strategy and goals.

The shareholders are responsible for voting on the appointment of Directors, approval of the amount of funds available for remunerating Non‐Executive
Directors and the granting of options and shares to Directors. Important issues are presented to the shareholders as single resolutions.
The Company’s auditor is required to be present, and be available to shareholders, at the Annual General Meeting.
Information is communicated to shareholders through:


The Annual Report which is distributed to all shareholders;



Half‐yearly reports, quarterly reports, and all Australian Securities Exchange announcements which are posted on the Company’s website;



The Annual General Meeting and other meetings so called to obtain approval for board action as appropriate; and



Compliance with the continuous disclosure requirements of the Australian Securities Exchange Listing Rules.

The Company’s full policy on shareholder communication can be found on the Company’s website.
Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 6.1 and 6.2.

Principle 7: Recognise and manage risk
Companies should establish a sound system of risk oversight and management and internal control.


Recommendation 7.1: Companies should establish policies for the oversight and management of material business risks and disclose a summary of those
policies.



Recommendation 7.2: The Board should require management to design and implement the risk management and internal control system to manage the
Company's material business risks and report to it on whether those risks are being managed effectively. The Board should disclose that management has
reported to it as to the effectiveness of the Company's management of its material business risks.



Recommendation 7.3: The Board should disclose whether it has received assurance from the Chief Executive Officer (or equivalent) and the Chief
Financial Officer (or equivalent) that the declaration provided in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is founded on a sound system of
risk management and internal control and that the system is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks.



Recommendation 7.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 7.

The Company's practice:
Risk oversight, management and internal control are dealt with on a continuous basis by management and the Board, with differing degrees of involvement
from various Directors and management, depending upon the nature and materiality of the matter.

The Board has established a formal policy to effectively recognise and manage risk as required by Recommendation 7.1. The Company’s policy is to achieve
levels of operation that balance risk and reward with the ultimate aim of optimising shareholder value. The Risk Management and Internal Control policy is
detailed in full on the Company’s website.
The Board takes a proactive approach to risk management. The Board is responsible for oversight of the processes whereby the risks, and also opportunities, are
identified on a timely basis and that the Company's objectives and activities are aligned with the risks and opportunities identified by the Board. This oversight
encompasses operational, financial reporting and compliance risks.
The Company believes that it is crucial for all board members to be a part of the process, and as such the Board has not established a separate Risk Management
Committee. The Board oversees the establishment, implementation and annual review of the Company's Risk Management Policies as part of the Board
approval process for the Strategic Plan, which encompasses the Company's vision and strategy, designed to meet stakeholders’ needs and manage business
risks.
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The Executive Director and Company Secretary have declared, in writing to the Board and in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act, that the
financial reporting risk management and associated compliance and controls have been assessed and found to be operating efficiently and effectively. All risk
assessments covered the whole financial year and the period up to the signing of the annual financial report for all material operations in the Company.
The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the overall internal control framework, but recognises that no cost effective internal control system will
preclude all errors and irregularities. To assist in discharging this responsibility, the Board has instigated an internal control framework that deals with:
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Financial reporting ‐ there is a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual budget, updated on a regular basis approved by the Board. Monthly
actual results are reported against these budgets.



Investment appraisal ‐ the Company has clearly defined guidelines for capital expenditure including annual budgets, detailed appraisal and review
procedures, levels of authority and due diligence requirements where businesses or assets are being acquired or divested.



Quality and integrity of personnel ‐ the Company's policies are detailed in an approved induction manual. Formal appraisals are conducted annually for all
employees.

Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 7.1, 7.2, 7.3 and 7.4.
Principle 8: Remunerate fairly and responsibly


Recommendation 8.1: The Board should establish a Remuneration Committee.



Recommendation 8.2: The Remuneration Committee should be structured so that it:

consists of a majority of independent Directors;

is chaired by an independent chair; and

has at least three members.



Recommendation 8.3: Companies should clearly distinguish the structure of Non‐Executive Directors’ remuneration from that of Executive Directors and
senior executives.



Recommendation 8.4: Companies should provide the information indicated in the Guide to reporting on Principle 8.

The Company's practice:
The Board has a separate Remuneration Committee to make recommendations to the Board about the remuneration of Executive and Non‐Executive Directors
as well as senior management of the Company.

Its responsibilities are set out in a formal Remuneration Committee charter approved by the Board. Due to the size and structure of the Company, the
Remuneration Committee consists of both Executive and Non‐Executive Directors and therefore the Company is not compliant with Recommendation 8.2
Remuneration of Directors are formalised in service agreements. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining and reviewing compensation
arrangements for the Directors themselves, the Executive Directors and the executive team.

It is the Company’s objective to provide maximum stakeholder benefit from the retention of a high quality board and executive team by remunerating Directors
and senior executives fairly and appropriately with reference to relevant employment market conditions. To assist in achieving this objective, the Board links the
nature and amount of Executive Directors’ and senior executives’ emoluments to the Company’s financial and operational performance. The expected outcomes
of the remuneration structure are:


Retention and motivation of senior executives;



Attraction of quality management to the Company; and



Performance incentives which allow executives to share the rewards of the success of the Company.

Remuneration of Non‐Executive Directors is determined by the Board with reference to comparable industry levels and, specifically for Directors' fees, within the
maximum amount approved by shareholders. There is no scheme to provide retirement benefits, other than statutory superannuation, to Non‐Executive
Directors.
Further information on Directors’ and key management personnel’s remuneration, including principles used to determine remuneration, is set out in the
Directors’ Report under the heading ‘Remuneration Report’. In accordance with the group policy, participants in equity‐based remuneration plans are not
permitted to enter into any transactions that would limit the economic risk of options or other unvested entitlements. Details of the policy can be found on the
Company’s website.
Based on the above information, the Company believes it is fully compliant with Recommendations 8.1, 8.3 and 8.4 and not compliant with 8.2 as outlined.
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